Legal and Governance

N\iddles@cﬁjgh

moving forward

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SCRUTINY
PANEL

Date: Thursday 8th December, 2022
Time: 12.30 pm
Venue: Spencer Room

AGENDA
1. Welcome and Evacuation Procedure
2. Apologies for Absence

3. Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of interest.

4. Minutes - Economic Development, Environment and 3-6
Infrastructure Scrutiny Panel - 9 November 2022

5. School Transport

The Director of Environment and Commercial Services will be
in attendance to provide an overview of the new scrutiny topic
of School Transport.

RECOMMENDATION: that the Panel considers Terms of
Reference for this scrutiny and what further information is
required.

6. Linthorpe Road Cycle Lane

The Infrastructure Programme Manager will be in attendance
to provide the Panel with an update on the Linthorpe Road
Cycle Lane.

RECOMMENDATION: that the Panel determines whether
further information is required.

Page 1



7. Teesside Crematorium - Feedback from Site Visit
Feedback will be provided from a Panel Member in relation to
a recent site visit to Teesside Crematorium.

8. Date of Next Meeting - 18 January 2023

9. Overview and Scrutiny Board Update

The Chair will provide a verbal update on matters considered
at the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 16
November 2022.

10.  Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may
be considered

Charlotte Benjamin
Director of Legal and Governance Services

Town Hall
Middlesbrough
Wednesday 30 November 2022

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors , R Arundale (Vice-Chair), D Branson, T Furness, A Hellaoui, B Hubbard,
T Mawston, M Saunders and J Thompson

Assistance in accessing information
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information

please contact Susan Lightwing, 01642 729712,
susan_lightwing@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 2



Agenda ltem 4

Economic Development, Environment and Infrastructure Scrutiny PanelWednesday 9 November 2022

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SCRUTINY PANEL

A meeting of the Economic Development, Environment and Infrastructure Scrutiny Panel was held on
Wednesday 9 November 2022.

PRESENT: Councillors C Dodds, D Branson, T Furness, A Hellaoui, B Hubbard, T Mawston,
M Saunders and J Thompson

OFFICERS: Susan Lightwing and Stewart Muir-Williams

APOLOGIES FOR were submitted on behalf of Councillor R Arundale

ABSENCE:

22/33 WELCOME AND EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Democratic Services Officer welcomed all present to the meeting and read out the
Building Evacuation Procedure.

22/34 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

In the absence of a Chair or Vice Chair, the Democratic Services Officer asked for
nominations for a Chair for the meeting. Councillor Mawston was nominated and the
nomination was seconded.

ORDERED that Councillor Mawston was elected Chair of the Economic Development,
Environment and Infrastructure Scrutiny Panel for the meeting.

22/35 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received at this point in the meeting.

22/36 MINUTES - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
SCRUTINY PANEL - 12 OCTOBER 2022

The minutes of the meeting of the Economic Development, Environment and Infrastructure
Scrutiny Panel held on 12 October 2022 were taken as read and approved as a correct
record.

In relation to Minute No 22/30 Councillor Branson confirmed that Middlesbrough Council
would participate in any joint scrutiny investigation into shellfish deaths along the north east
coast with other Tees Valley Authorities.

22/37 FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT

The Panel received a presentation from the Public Rights of Way Officer on the topic of Flood
Risk Management. As a result of the Pitt Review in 2007, the Scrutiny Panel was required to
receive an annual summary of actions taken locally and review works carried out, to manage
flood risk.

Middlesbrough’s drainage system was extensive and complex in nature comprising open and
culverted watercourses and a surface water/combined sewerage system. Flooding could
come from a variety of sources including surface water run off, ordinary watercourses,
surcharging sewers and road gullies.

Surface water flooding occurred when intense rainfall, often of short duration, was unable to
permeate into the ground or enter drainage systems quickly enough, resulting in ponding or
overland flows. This could cause considerable problems in urban areas. During periods of
heavy rainfall, standing water could accumulate even if the road gullies were in good working
order.  Some gullies could not drain the water away fast enough and therefore would
surcharge during periods of intense rainfall. Such intense periods of rainfall often short in
duration, and once over, the gully would usually drain away the water without needing any
attention. Areas susceptible to surface water flooding had been identified by the Environment
Agency (EA) and were shown on a map of Middlesbrough.

Page 3



Wednesday 9th November, 2022

Middlesbrough Council worked with Northumbrian Water Limited (NWL) to carry out strategic
studies. The strategic studies highlighted and prioritised the areas of greatest risk from
combined flooding within each of the catchment areas. Middlesbrough was covered by
several catchment areas and each area would have a two stage study undertaken. Stage 1
focused on the collection, collation, analysis and prioritisation of information to identify areas
of High Risk from Flooding. Stage 2 focused on identifying opportunities within the top three
or four high risk areas to reduce or prevent flooding. The Environment Agency also
contributed to this work.

A strategic study of Middlesbrough East, which included some of Redcar and Cleveland had
been undertaken. Stage 1 was completed in 2018 and ten flood risk areas were identified.
Three or four of those areas were taken to a Stage 2 study which was completed in 2021.
Some of the issues were for the NWL network and others related to surface water flooding.
When an area was identified for a scheme it was added to the EA’s Forward Work
Programme for funding. If a scheme was to address surface water this would be eligible for
EA funding.

Flood Defence Grant in Aid (FDGIiA): the EA’'s Medium Term Plan was a rolling list of
schemes which were refreshed annually and were funded from Government funding
allocation. The funding set by the Government was for six years and the current funding
would run from 2021/2022 to 2026/2027. Councils could put forward schemes of areas
susceptible to surface water flooding, with an indication of how many areas might get flooded.
Then carry out studies and modelling would be carried out to justify whether to take it further
or whether it was not merited. On a basic map it might look as though ten properties could be
protected from flooding, but following modelling this figure could potentially reduce.

Following a recent refresh of the EA’s Medium Term Plan, eleven potential scheme areas
were included that could protect 636 Middlesbrough homes.

Further details of two current schemes: Saltersgill Fields and Ormesby High Street were
provided.

Construction of the Saltersgill Fields Scheme started in 2019 and was completed in 2021.
The finished scheme was larger than originally planned and involved the creation of ponds
and scrapes between Saltersgill Road and the allotments, and a bund around the open space
between the allotments and Marton Road. It was envisaged that around 306 properties were
now better protected from flooding. Additional benefits were realised as part of the scheme
which included the provision of a number of surfaced footpaths, one of which provided a
shortcut to a nearby school. The site was also protected from vehicle trespass.

Work was currently being undertaken on the Outline Business Case which for the Ormesby
High Street Scheme which was due to be completed in early January 2023. A second surface
water flow from the fields had been identified and as such the scope of the scheme was
expanded. The scheme could involve the creation of a bund within the National Trust land
and so further discussions with the National Trust were taking place. The scheme looked to
capture overland flows from the Farm Land to the south of the National Trust property.
Potential flood risk from the culvert under the High Street was identified and improvements
had been made by the EA to the trash screen to prevent obstructions to flow.

The EA had also completed a major scheme on Marton West Beck that had started in summer
2020 and completed earlier this year. The scheme had better protected around 500 homes
and businesses. The trash screen at Albert Park had been improved and extended, with new
flood walls and a surface water storage area installed. New flood walls had also been added
at Borough Road. A new drainage system had been built and a surface water storage area
had also been created in Acklam behind Teesside Crematorium.

It was highlighted that the water storage area behind the Crematorium had been improved
with wildflowers and trees planted. The Officer explained that additional funding was provided
for increasing biodiversity alongside flood management schemes.

The Ormesby Beck Restoration Scheme began in early August 2022 and was due to be
completed by the end of the year. The scheme would remove the existing tidal structure
which was often over topped by high tides as well as the screen near to the Navigation Public

Page 4



22/38

Wednesday 9th November, 2022

House. The grills from the structures would be kept to reuse at a different location at a later
date.

In addition to flood prevention schemes the Council continued to investigate the highway
drainage system, which had not previously been recorded or mapped, to increase knowledge
of the system and the interactions with sewers and watercourses. The Council could then
repair and cleanse the system where required.

The Council also worked with Developers to ensure that Sustainable Drainage (SuDs)
technigues were included in all major developments.

In January 2022, Gully Smart, an asset management software programme was purchased.
The aim was to enable both a proactive and reactive response to tackling flood risk and help
with the management of the highway drainage network. The Panel received a demonstration
of the main features of the software programme at the meeting.

The Council was starting to build up a knowledge bank of watercourse locations and resolve
some long standing issues. All roads with gullies had been surveyed and silt level tests had
been carried out. It was noted that silt would block gullies whereas water could still pass
through a build up of fallen leaves. Information was inputted by the Rights of Way Officer or
the surveying personnel. It was anticipated that there would eventually be link to Firmstep to
enable members of the public to report issues directly.

Members voiced concerns in relation to the Council’s tree planting programme and whether it
was a sensible policy to plant trees along the roadside. The Officer confirmed that he was
consulted by Area Care and could advise not to plant trees near culverts. In addition, he was
consulted on any new developments or planning permissions to ensure that allowance was
made for urban creep — where grass was being replaced by concrete.

The Chair thanked the Officer for his attendance and presentation.
AGREED that the information provided was received and noted.

Post meeting it was confirmed that the Council currently owned two Gully Suckers and had
one permanent gully crew. One machine was kept as a spare to cover times when the main
vehicle was being repaired/serviced. The service tended to be responsive and the work with
Gully Smart would enable specific areas of concern to be targeted with routine maintenance
on those gullies that required regular cleansing.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SCRUTINY
PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2022-2023

Members discussed the current Work Programme as follows:

Following receipt of an overview of Nutrient Neutrality at the last meeting, the Panel agreed to
put this scrutiny investigation on hold until 2023. Following recent changes within
Government there was some uncertainty as to possible changes to national planning policy
and legislation. It was agreed it would be prudent for the Panel to await clarity from the
Government on this issue before proceeding further with its investigation.

In relation to the Prevention of Damage to Grass Verges, the Panel agreed that the
information provided and discussed at the last meeting was sufficient and no further
investigation was required at this time.

It was suggested that the issue of School Transport should be added to the current
programme, given that it was a statutory requirement and an ongoing spending pressure due
to a greater number of children qualifying for home to school transport, new schools, and an
increase in costs to transport children out of the area.

A further suggestion was that the Panel should look at a scheme operating in Greater
Manchester where 100% of Business Rates were retained by the Authority and redistributed
between the different authorities in the Greater Manchester Council according to need, and
whether there was potential for a similar scheme in the Tees Valley area.

Page 5



22/39

22/40

22/41

Wednesday 9th November, 2022

The Panel also requested an update on the Linthorpe Road Cycle Lane and the changes
proposed since the Panel last discussed this in September.

The other topics previously approved by Overview and Scrutiny Board would remain on the
Panel’s work schedule to be programmed in when timely. The topics were:

. Housing: Impact on Health and Wellbeing AND Income to the Council/Potential
Impact of Increased Development Costs.

. Enforcement of Planning Conditions.

. New Pest Control Service — currently on hold due to the service not yet being in

operation.

. Local Plan Update — currently on hold due the Council agreeing to commence  work

on a new Local Plan in October 2022

AGREED as follows:

1. The information provided was received and noted.

2. A request would be made to the Overview and Scrutiny Board to approve amending the
Economic Development, Environment and Infrastructure Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme
2022-2023 to include School Transport and Business Rates.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 7 DECEMBER 2022

The time and date of the next meeting of the Economic Development, Environment and
Infrastructure Scrutiny Panel was confirmed as 7 December 2022 at 10.30 am.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD UPDATE

The Chair provided a verbal update on agenda items from the Overview and Scrutiny Board
meeting held on 25 October 2022 which included updates from the Executive Member for
Adult Social Care, Public Health, Public Protection and Digital Inclusion, Scrutiny Chairs’ and
in relation to the Executive Forward Work Programme.

In relation to the Executive Member’s presentation, the Overview and Scrutiny Board had
resolved that a letter be written to the Police and Crime Commissioner highlighting the
concerns of the Board in relation to the ending of the Heroin Assisted Treatment (HAT)
programme in Middlesbrough.

ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE
CONSIDERED

None.

Page 6



Middlesbrough

) abed

School Transport

G waj)| epuaby

L)
- mmammEm - o ivp
ST = £
BT ¥ &t

middlesbrough.gov.uk



School Transport

This Home to School Transport Policy relates to the
Education Act 1996 and additional duties required by the
Education and Inspections Act 2006.

National guidance (last issued in July 2014 by the
Department for Education) sets out the expectations of
authorities in regards to home to school transport
arrangements for pupils. In particular, the guidance sets
out the circumstances in which the local authority has a
duty to provide or arrange free school transport for
children of compulsory school age

g afed

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesmgh



Who Is Eligible?

*  Free home to school transport or assistance will be provided for the following eligible pupils who
will be of compulsory school age during the current academic year:

a) A primary school age pupil attends their nearest suitable school and that school is over 2 miles
from the home address where the distance is determined by the Council and uses the shortest
walking distance along which a child, accompanied as necessary, may walk with reasonable
safety;

b) A secondary school age pupil attends the nearest suitable school and that school is over 3
miles from the home address where the distance is determined by the Council and uses the
shortest walking distance along which a child, accompanied as necessary, may walk with
reasonable safety;

* ) A secondary school age pupil from a low income family and attends: i. any one of their three
nearest suitable schools and the school is between 2 and 6 miles away from their home address,
or ii. the nearest school preferred by their parents on the grounds of religion or belief and the
school is between 2 and 15 miles away from their home address

6 obed

1jyly

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesbrough



Who is Eligible

« Transport requirements are considered as part of a full
assessment of a child’s special educational needs. If a
child’s needs are such that there are no associated
transport requirements, then eligibility for free transport
or assistance will be assessed against the policy given
above. 18. If a child is unable to walk the statutory
distance to their nearest appropriate school because of
their special educational needs or disability, even If
accompanied by a responsible adult, the Council will,
subject to the statutory assessment/annual review
process, provide travel assistance.

0T abed

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesmlgh



Personal Transport Allowance

* In some cases, where children qualify under this policy
for assistance with transport, the Council will consider
offering a personal transport allowance instead of direct
transport provision, where this is in the best interests of
the child and is the lowest cost option for the Council.

Personal transport allowance is a sum of money
calculated for each family to cover the cost of travel to
and from school. A mileage allowance of 45 pence per
mile will be awarded for the return journey to and from
school at the beginning and end of the school day. As
allowances are calculated on an individual basis they will

_vary from fa amily. & ___

mily to f
middlesbrough.gov.uk Middles[mlgh

1J abed




2T obed

Middlesbrough
Permanently Excluded Puplls

Permanently Excluded Pupils 35. Where a child is
permanently excluded from a mainstream school and
the Council is required to secure alternative provision
for them, they will be entitled to free transport or
assistance to an approved alternative provider,
commissioned by the Council, in accordance with the
policy for mainstream and special schools given above.
36. It is expected that assistance will be on a temporary
basis until such a time as the child is re-integrated into
mainstream or special school and will be subject to
review.

middlesbrough.gov.uk




Other reasons for transport

* Temporary illness

Parent with disabllity

cTgbed

* No safe walking route.

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middles%gh



Types of Assistance

* Travel Training to use public transport.
School Transport
Paid Parent support

 Travel of ITU Bus or Taxi.
— This can be with or without a PA

ob
«Q
@
=
1o

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesmlgh



Breakdown of Transport Type

Children 0.45p 62
- Children in mode of transport 1217
QD
«Q
@ EIA Coahes 167
H
(@)
EIA Payments 110
Total supported 1556

Cost of Service approx. £3.5m

middlesbrough.gov.uk




Challenges

* Increasing number of children with
complex needs

 Avallability of staff

 Avallability of private sector providers
* Inflation

« Supply of own vehicles.

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middles[%gh



Middlesbrough

Linthorpe Road Cycleway;
Phase 1

/T obed

9 Wa)| epusaby

middlesbrough.gov.uk



Background
* More roads/car not sustainable
 Linthorpe ¢.10,000 vehicles per day
* 1.6% cycles = 18% accidents 23% injuries

« TVCA LCWIP (propensity to cycle) -
suppressed demand

 COVID Active Travel England / Active
Travel Fund

* Local Transport Network 1/20 guidance

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middles[mlgh



Consultation

e Dec—-Jan 21 - 71% not Iin favour
* Alterations made:

* highlighted Amber Street Car park disabled spaces
added, bus stops retained

Unanimous Executive approval March 21
Funding approved by TVCA April 21 B4R

6T ’0ede

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middleslmlgh



Construction
* 6 month construction period - CLS
* Delays due to Hard ground conditions

« Extra signalised crossing installed/upgrade
existing

 Remediated existing surface
* Cycle parking installed

« Completed within grant allocation (no MBC
money)

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middles[mlgh



viwls
middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesbrough



middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesmlgh

maoving forward



Uptake so far

Cyclist mode %

3.00
2.50
2.00
1.50
1.00
0.50
0.00

Q e X & $ &
@q}é\ W& & & > & & F S S \),bd

Camera installed in March

Seasonal variations

* 36% Increase — small numbers, but good
* Long term trends to be assessed

<2 9fgd

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middles@(ﬁlgh



Post implementation incidents

* Pedestrian trips (circa 30) — average of
5000 peds per day

. No pattern — many adjacent to Signalised
& Ccrossing points

& Scheme is compliant with guidance
 RSA stage 3 recommendations

* Replaced 50% humps with poles

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middles[mlgh



Phase 2
* Fully funded by TVCA grant
« Anticipated commence in 23/24
“Lessons learnt” / ATE scrutiny/input
Ground Penetration Radar (GPR) survey
Hump/pole arrangement
More crossing points added

High friction surfacing at crossing points
« Undertaken by ECS

o S@obede

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middles[mlgh



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes - Economic Development, Environment and Infrastructure Scrutiny Panel - 9 November 2022
	5 School Transport
	6 Linthorpe Road Cycle Lane

